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N O T I C E 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF 

THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT C-1, WADIA INTERNATIONAL CENTER, 

PANDURANG BUDHKAR MARG, WORLI, MUMBAI - 400025 ON THURSDAY, 26th SEPTEMBER, 

2019 AT 03:00 P.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Bakhtavar Ady Pardiwalla (DIN:06721889), who retires by rotation 

in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers herself for re-

appointment.  

 

Special Business: 

 

3. To consider appointment of Mr. Sanjive Arora as the Independent Director of the Company 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and 160 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and the Rules made thereunder, read 

with Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 (“Listing Regulations”) (including any 

statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Mr. 

Sanjive Arora (DIN: 07852459), who was appointed as an Additional Director, pursuant to Section 161 of 

the Act, in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from August 29, 2019, and who 

has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for Independence as provided under the Act and the 

Listing Regulations and in respect of whom Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) 

of the Act from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director and who holds office upto 

the date of this Annual General Meeting (AGM), be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect 

from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the Forty Second AGM of the Company to 

be held in the year 2024, not liable to retire by rotation” 

 

4. To re-appoint Mr. D. S. Gagrat (DIN: 00017082) as the Independent Director for the Second Term 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as Special 

Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 alongwith the rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with 

Regulation 25 and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 (effective from April 1, 2019), Mr. Dhun 

Sorabji Gagrat (DIN: 00017082), an existing Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted 

his declaration of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act, Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Second Amendment Rules, 2018 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and whose present term of 

office of five years expires on 25
th

 September, 2019, be and is hereby re-appointed as the Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company for second term of five (5) consecutive years with effect from the 

conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the Forty Second AGM of the Company to be held in 

the year 2024, not liable to retire by rotation. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 196 of the Act and Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing 

Regulations, approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby granted to Mr. D. S. Gagrat (DIN: 

00017082) for continuing to hold office of the Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company after 

attaining the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years, till his remaining tenure as a Non-Executive Independent 

Director.” 

 

5. To appoint Mr. J. C. Bham (DIN: 02806038) as the Non-Independent Director of the Company: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to expiry of the first term of appointment as the Independent Director of 

the Company and in compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and 160 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 

amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), alongwith SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time and in 

accordance with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members be and is 

hereby given to appoint Mr. J. C. Bham (DIN: 02806038) as the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

of the Company with effect from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, who will 

be liable to retire by rotation; 

 

6. To appoint Mr. S. Raja (DIN: 03149272) as the Non-Independent Director of the Company  

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 

Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to expiry of the first term of appointment as the Independent Director of 

the Company and in compliance with the applicable provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and 160 and other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 

amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), alongwith SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Amendment Regulations, 2018 and in accordance with the 

approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members be and is hereby given to 

appoint Mr. S. Raja (DIN: 03149272) as the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company 

with effect from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, who will be liable to 

retire by rotation; 

 

7. To consider appointment of Mr. Mukesh Meshram as the Manager for the Company 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51), 2(53), 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with other applicable provisions of Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modifications thereof and 

in accordance with the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the members be and 

is hereby given to appoint Mr. Mukesh Meshram, Chartered Accountant (Membership No: 170615), as the 

Manager of the Company for a period of five (5) years commencing from April 10, 2019 on such terms and 

conditions and on such remuneration as may be agreed to between him and the Board of Directors.” 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors, 

 

For Technojet Consultants Limited 

sd/- 

Amisha Rajput 

Company Secretary 

  (M. No: A37942) 

     Date: 29
th

 August, 2019 

     Place: Mumbai 

 

     Registered Office: 

     Neville House, 

     J. N. Heredia Marg,  

     Ballard Estate,  

     Mumbai - 400001 

 



 

 

 

Notes: 

 

a. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND 

SUCH PROXY/PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as 

proxy on behalf of a Member upto and not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten (10) percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy 

shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The instrument of proxy in order to be 

effective, should be lodged / deposited at the registered office of the Company, duly completed and 

signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting (Proxy form is attached 

herewith). Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an 

appropriate resolution/ authority, as applicable. 

 

b. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out material facts 

concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 to 7 of the Notice is annexed hereto. 

 

c. Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed under item no. 2, 3 and 7, nature of their 

expertise in functional areas, names of Companies in which they hold Directorships and 

memberships/Chairmanships of Board Committees and shareholding, are mentioned in ‘Annexure - I’ 

 

d.  In view of the circular issued by SEBI, the Electronic Clearing Services (ECS/NECS) facility should 

mandatorily be used by the companies for the distribution of dividend to its members. In order to avail 

the facility of ECS/NECS, members holding shares in physical form are requested to provide bank 

account details to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.  

 

Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered against 

their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The 

Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares 

in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised 

only to the Depository Participant of the Members 
 

e. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 

will be entitled to vote. 
 

f. Members are requested to immediately notify any change of address: 
 

(i) to their Depositary Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts, and  
 

  (ii)  to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents (RTA) in respect of their physical share    

 folios, if any, quoting their folio numbers, at their address given below:. 

  

 Karvy Fintech Private Limited 

 (Unit: Technojet Consultants Limited) 

 Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32 | Financial District  

           Nanakramguda |Serilingampally Mandal | Hyderabad, 

 Telangana – 500032, India 

 Telephone number:           +91 40 6716 1627 

 Fax number:                      +91 40 2342 0814 

 E-mail:                               einward.ris@karvy.com 

 

g. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered against 

their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend, if any. The 

Company or its Registrar cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in 

electronic form with respect to any change in bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be 

advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members. 
 

h. Members holding shares in physical form may avail the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 by nominating a person, in the prescribed form, to whom their shares in the 

Company shall vest in the event of their death. The prescribed form can be obtained from the Company’s 

Office at C-1, Wadia International Center, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400025 or from 

its RTA at their aforesaid address.  
 

i. As part of the Company’s Green Initiative, the Company may propose to send documents like Notice 

convening the General Meetings, Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, etc. to the  

e-mail address provided by the members. 
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We request the members to be part of the said ‘Green Initiative’ and to register their names for receiving 

the said documents by electronic mode by mailing us your Registered Folio Number and/or DP ID/Client 

ID to the dedicated email address at technojetconsultantsltd@gmail.com or by doing login at the RTA 

website einward@karvy.com to register their request. 
 

j. Members intending to require information about the Financial Accounts, to be explained at the Meeting 

are requested to inform the Company at least a week in advance of their intention to do so, so that the 

papers relating thereto may be made available. 
 

k. Members/proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the Meeting. 
 

l. Voting through electronic means: 

 

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Amendment Regulations, 2018, the Company provides to its members, the facility to 

exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Thirty Seventh Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting 

Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place 

other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by the RTA of the Company. 

 

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the AGM and the members 

attending the meeting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot paper in 

case they have not casted their vote by remote e-voting. 

 

III. The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM 

but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. 
 

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, September 23, 2019 (9:00 am) and ends on 

Wednesday, September 25, 2019 (5:00 pm). During this period, the members of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on the cut-off date of September 19, 2019, 

may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting by 

Karvy thereafter. 
  

V. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, such member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently. 

 

VI. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 

 

VII. The process and manner for remote e-voting is as under: 

 

A. Member whose email IDs are registered with the Company/DPs will receive an email from Karvy 

informing them of their User-ID and Password. Once the Members receives the email, he or she will 

need to go through the following steps to complete the e-voting process: 

 

(i) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.karvy.com 

(ii) Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password) which will be sent separately. 

However, if you are already registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your existing 

User ID and password for casting your vote. If required, please visit https://evoting.karvy.com 

or contact toll free number 1-800-3454-001 for your existing password. 

(iii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”. 

(iv) You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change 

your password. The new password shall comprise minimum 8 characters with at least one 

upper case (A-Z), one lower case (az), one numeric (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$,etc.). 

The system will prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like 

mobile number, email address, etc. on first login. You may also enter a secret question and 

answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly 

recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

(v) You need to login again with the new credentials. 

(vi) On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event Number for 

Technojet Consultants Limited.  

(vii) On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on 

the cut-off date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number 

in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken 

together should not exceed your total shareholding as on the cut-off date. You may also 

choose the option “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under either head.  
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(viii) Members holding shares under multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process 

separately for each of the folios/demat accounts. 

(ix) Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast 

your vote on any specific item it will be treated as abstained. 

(x) You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.  

(xi) A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. 

Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, 

members can login any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s).  

(xii) Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are also 

required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution / Power of 

Attorney / Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly 

authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID: 

practisingcs@vaibhavshahandco.com or technojetconsultantsltd@gmail.com.They may also 

upload the same in the e-voting module in their login. The scanned image of the above 

mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENT NO” 

 

B. In case a member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are 

not registered or have requested the physical copy]: 
 

a) Initial password is provided in below format at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the 

AGM : 
 

USER ID PASSWORD 
 

b) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (i) to Sl. No. (xii) above to cast vote. 

 

VIII. In case of any query pertaining to e-voting, please visit Help & FAQ’s section available at Karvy’s 

website https://evoting.karvy.com 

 

IX. If the member is already registered with Karvy e-voting platform then he can use his existing User ID 

and password for casting the vote through remote e-voting. 

 

X. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may 

be used for sending future communication. 

 

XI. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date of September 19, 2019. 

 

XII. Any person who becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of the Meeting and 

holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. September 19, 2019 may obtain the User ID and password in the 

manner as mentioned below:  
 

a) If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID Client ID, the member 

may send SMS : MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number + Folio No. or DP ID Client ID to 

9212993399 
 

Example for NSDL: 

MYEPWD <SPACE> IN12345612345678 

Example for CDSL: 

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678 

Example for Physical: 

MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890 
 

b) If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID Client ID, 

then on the home page of https://evoting.karvy.com, the member may click “Forgot Password” and 

enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a password. 
 

c) Member may call Karvy’s toll free number 1-800-3454-001.  
 

d) Member may send an e-mail request to evoting@karvy.com. If the member is already registered 

with Karvy e-voting platform then he can use his existing User ID and password for casting the vote 

through remote e-voting. 
 

XIII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, viz., September 19, 2019 only shall be entitled to 

avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper. 

 

mailto:technojetconsultantsltd@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@karvy.com


XIV. Mr. Vaibhav Shah, Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 26121), Proprietor of Vaibhav Shah and 

Company - Mumbai, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer of the Company to scrutinize the e-voting 

process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

XV. Voting shall be allowed at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held with the 

assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of ballot paper for all those members who are present at the AGM but 

have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

 

XVI. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting 

and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses 

who are not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than Forty-Eight hours from the 

conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutiniser’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 

any, to the Chairman or to a person authorised by the Chairman in writing, who shall countersign the 

same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

XVII. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutiniser shall be placed on the website of the 

Company www.technojet.in and on the website of Karvy immediately after the declaration of result by 

the Chairman or by a person duly authorised. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 

Limited, where the equity shares of the Company are listed. 

 

XVIII. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on 

the date of the AGM i.e. September 26, 2019. 

 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

For Technojet Consultants Limited 

sd/- 

Amisha Rajput 

Company Secretary 

(M. No: A37942) 

 

  

Date: 29
th

 August, 2019 

Place: Mumbai 

 

Registered Office: 

Neville House, 

J. N. Heredia Marg,  

Ballard Estate,  

Mumbai 400001 

  

http://www.technojet.in/


 

 

    

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out all material facts 

relating to special business mentioned in the Notice 

 

Item No. 3 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and subject 

to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on August 29, 2019, appointed Mr. Sanjive 

Arora (DIN: 07852459) as the Additional Director in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company to hold office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) and recommended to the Members 

of the Company, to appoint him as the Non-Executive Independent Director for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive 

years from the conclusion of this AGM till the AGM to be held in the year 2024, in compliance of Sections 149, 

150, 152, Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 

read with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

(Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 

 

In terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received notice in writing from a member 

proposing his candidature for the office of Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

The Company has obtained consent letter from Mr. Sanjive Arora with regards to the above and relevant 

declaration under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to his non-disqualification from being 

appointed as the Director on the Board of the Company. 

 

The Company has also received declarations from Mr. Sanjive Arora for meeting with the criteria of independence 

as prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (“Act”) and applicable 

provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).  

 

On the basis of above declarations, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Sanjive Arora fulfills the required 

conditions specified in the Act and SEBI Regulations and also possesses appropriate balance of skills, experience 

and knowledge so as to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively and is independent of the 

management. 

 

Brief resume of Mr. Sanjive Arora and other relevant details are provided in the annexure of the Notice. 

 

The draft letter for the appointment setting out the terms and conditions of his appointment is available for 

inspection of the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days of the Company during 

business hours. 

 

Except Mr. Sanjive Arora, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 

relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution. 

 

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item Nos. 3 of the notice for approval by the members. 

 

Item No. 4  

 

Mr. D. S. Gagrat (DIN: 00017082) was appointed as the Independent Director of the Company for the first term 

of Five (5) consecutive years pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 

read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and in terms of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. His term as such is due to expire on 25th September, 

2019.  

 

Based on his performance evaluation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) recommended to the 

Board of Directors to re-appoint Mr. D. S. Gagrat as the Independent Director of the Company for the second term 

of 5 (five) consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) upto the 

AGM to be held in the year 2024. Also, given his background, experience and contributions during his tenure, the 

Board opined that the continued association of Mr. D. S. Gagrat would be beneficial to the Company and 

therefore it is desirable to continue to avail his service as the Independent Director on the Board of the Company. 

  

Further, in terms of Section 164 of the Act, Mr. D. S. Gagrat is not disqualified from being appointed as the 

Director and has also submitted his declaration with regards to meeting the criteria of independence as prescribed 

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure) Requirements Regulations, 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Act.  

 

 

 

 



 

Mr. D. S. Gagrat fulfills the conditions required for being re-appointed as the Independent Director on the Board 

of the Company and is independent of the management.  

 

Pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received notice in writing, from a member 

proposing his re-appointment for the office of Independent Director of the Company.  

 

In terms of Section 196 of the Act and Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing Regulations, approval of shareholders by 

means of special resolution is required for appointing or continuing the directorship of any Director who has 

attained seventy five years of age. Since Mr. D. S. Gagrat has already attained seventy five years of the age, the 

Company seeks members’ approval in the ensuing AGM for continuing directorship of Mr. Gagrat on the Board 

of the Company. 

Your Directors, therefore, recommend to re-appoint him as the Independent Director of the Company for second 

term of five (5) consecutive years, not liable to retire by rotation.  

Save and except Mr. D. S. Gagrat and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their 

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution. 

 

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item No. 4 of the notice for approval by the members. 

 

Item No. 5  

 

Mr. J. C. Bham (DIN: 2806038) is an associate member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India. He also possesses qualification as a Chartered Accountant. 

  

Mr. Bham has over 50 years of Corporate experience in various areas and majorly including conducting 

of Board meetings / Committee / Shareholders’ meetings, Fund raising (domestic as well as 

international), Joint ventures and acquisitions, Meeting the compliance requirements of a listed public 

company, Property matters (owned & lease), General insurance, and Indirect tax matters. 

  

Mr. Bham’s has been associated with the reputed organizations like The Bombay Dyeing & Mfg. Co. 

Limited, Tata Steel Limited and Otis Elevator Company India Limited, wherein he held the position of 

Company Secretary and has contributed tremendously in the business activities of the Company. 

  

Outside Directorship: Oseaspre Consultants Limited, Nowrosjee Wadia & Sons Limited, Macrofil 

Investments Limited, Wadia Techno-Engineering Services Limited, Flora Hypermarket Limited, Flora 

Online Limited and other Companies.  

In lieu of the above and given his background, experience and contributions during his tenure, the 

Board opined that the continued association of Mr. Bham would be beneficial to the Company and 

therefore it is desirable to continue to avail his service as the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

on the Board of the Company. 

Save and except Mr. J. C. Bham and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

above Resolution. 

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item Nos. 5 of the notice for approval by the members. 
 

Item No. 6 

Mr. S. Raja (DIN: 03149272) is a Chartered Accountant and fellow member of The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. He is also holding a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from University of 

Madras. 

            

Mr. S Raja has over 30 years of Corporate experience in various areas including finalization of 

manufacturing accounts, consolidation of accounts, handling corporate issues, in charge of Direct & 

Indirect taxation of corporates as well as individual assessees, internal audits, handling PF/SA/Gratuity 

funds and trusts etc. Mr. S Raja’s has been associated with the reputed organizations like Kirloskar 

Group of companies, Greaves Ltd. and Ambuja Cements Limited wherein he held various senior 

positions.  



  

Outside Directorship: Oseaspre Consultants Limited, Nowrosjee Wadia & Sons Limited (Additional 

Director) and other companies.     
 

In lieu of the above and given his background, experience and contributions during his tenure, the 

Board opined that the continued association of Mr. S. Raja would be beneficial to the Company and 

therefore it is desirable to continue to avail his service as the Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 

on the Board of the Company. 

Save and except Mr. S. Raja and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or 

their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above Resolution 
 

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item No. 6 of the notice for approval by the members. 

 

Item No. 7 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read 

with applicable provisions of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Mukesh Meshram, chartered 

Accountant, as the Manager of the Company to hold office for a period of five (5) years commencing 

from April 10, 2019.  

Mr. Meshram is a qualified Chartered Accountant bearing Membership No: 170615 and possesses 

adequate experience for being appointed as the Manager of the Company. Also, the appointment of Mr. 

Mukesh Meshram is in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time and will be 

considered as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Detailed resume of Mr. Meshram is 

given in the annexure to this notice. 

Save and except Mr. Mukesh and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the above 

Resolution 

 

The Board recommends resolution set out in Item No. 7 of the notice for approval by the members. 
 

  



 

 

ANNEXURE - I 

Brief resume of Directors proposed to be Appointed/ Re-appointed 

Item No. 2 

 

Name: Mrs. Bakhtavar Ady Pardiwalla  

Age: 64, has forty three years of experience in the field of administration. 

Date of first appointment on the Board: 09
th

 November, 2015 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the year: Four Board Meetings in the F. Y 2018-19 

Outside Directorship:  Oseaspre Consultants Limited and Nitapo Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 

Committee Membership: NIL 

Shareholding in the Company: 8,281 shares as on 31
st
 March, 2019. 

 

Item No. 3 

Profile: Mr. Sanjive Arora (DOB 08/06/1963) is a B. Com graduate from Delhi University and a qualified 

Company Secretary (FCS)  having  a rich experience of working in corporate sector comprising of telecom and 

power Cables,  Hospitality ,  Real Estate  and Manufacturing segment.  Mr. Arora has received many accolades 

which included best speaker award and was also associated with cultural activities at ICSI / ROC office at 

Mumbai. He has an experience of more than 25 years in Corporate Laws, Secretarial, Legal and Financial matters 

and also handled merger and demerger activities. Presently Mr. Arora is heading the Secretarial Department of 

The Bombay Dyeing and Manufacturing Company Ltd. for last three years. 

Item No. 4 

 

Profile: Mr. D. S. Gagrat, age 86 years, is a science graduate having over 58 years of experience in handling 

various Manufacturing units. Mr. Gagrat has been actively associated with the Company as the Independent 

Director and his valuable contribution is highly appreciated by the Board. 

 

Item No. 5 

 

Profile: Mr. J. C. Bham is an associate member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He is also a 

Chartered Accountant. He has over 50 years of experience in various areas including Conducting of Board / 

Committee of Boards / Shareholders’ meetings, Fund raising (domestic as well as international), Joint ventures 

and acquisitions, Meeting the compliance requirements of a listed public company, Property matters (owned & 

lease), General insurance, and Indirect tax matters. His past experience includes Companies like The Bombay 

Dyeing & Mfg. Co. Limited, Tata Steel Limited and Otis Elevator Company India Limited, wherein he held the 

position of Company Secretary. 

 

Item No. 6 

 

Profile: Mr. S. Raja is a Chartered Accountant and fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. He is also holding a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from University of Madras. He has over 30 years of 

experience in various areas including finalization of manufacturing accounts, consolidation of accounts, handling 

corporate issues, in charge of Direct & Indirect taxation of corporates as well as individual assessees, internal 

audits, handling PF/SA/Gratuity funds and trusts etc. His previous assignments include association with Kirloskar 

group of companies, Greaves Ltd., and Ambuja Cements Limited wherein he held various senior positions. 

 

Item No. 7 

 

Name: Mr. Mukesh Meshram 

Qualifications: Chartered Accountant 

Date of first appointment on the Board: April 10, 2019 

Outside Directorship:  NIL. 

Committee Membership: NIL 

Shareholding in the Company: NIL 

 

 

  



 

ROUTE MAP 

 

Venue - C-1, Wadia International Center, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, 

Mumbai - 400 025 

 

 
 

Landmark : Near Bombay Dyeing 

 

Distance from Elphinstone Road Railway Station is 900m and from Parel Railway station is 1200m.  
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DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 

 

The Directors hereby present their Thirty-Seventh Report on the business and operations of the 

Company alongwith the Audited financial statements for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2019. These 

Financials have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as required 

under the Companies Act, 2013: 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

                                                                                                                   (Amounts in ₹) 

 

 
For the year ended 

31
st
 March, 2019 

For the year ended 

31
st
 March, 2018 

Profit /(Loss) before taxation 4,04,501 (2,78,580) 

Less:  Tax Expense   

          Current tax 78,000 - 

          Deferred Tax - - 

          Income tax of prior years - - 

Profit /(Loss) after taxation 326,501 (2,78,580) 

Add: Balance brought forward from earlier 

year 

55,12,038 57,90,618 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 58,38,606 55,12,038 

 (Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary and have been re-stated as per the Ind   

AS requirements) 

 

During the year under review, the Company has made Profit before taxation of Rs. 4,04,568/- as against 

the loss of (₹. 2,78,580/-) in the last year. 

 

2. DIVIDEND: 
  

Your Directors have not recommended payment of any dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19. 

 

3. OPERATIONS: 

 

 The Company has rented its factory premises located at Valsad, Gujarat. 

 
4. HOLDING AND SUBSIDIARIES: 

 

 The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary, joint venture or associate Companies. 

 
5. DEPOSITS: 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in the Financial Year 2018-19. 

 

6. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried out by your Company, the provisions 

of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption, 

are not applicable to your Company. 

 

There were no Foreign Exchange earnings or outgo during the period. 

 

 

 

Email:oseaspre@gmail.com


 

 

 

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

The Company’s policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is disclosed on the Company’s 

website at www.technojet.in   

 

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length 

basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

During the year under review, the Company did not enter into any contract / arrangement / 

transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the 

related party transactions. The related party transactions are disclosed under Note No. 27 of the 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year 2018-19. 

 

8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

During the year under review, the Company has no outstanding Loans, Guarantees or 

Investments pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

9. ANNUAL RETURN AS REQUIRED AND PRESCRIBED UNDER SECTION 92(3) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULES MADE THEREUNDER: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the Annual 

Return of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 will be uploaded on the website of the Company 

at www.technojet.in   

 

10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

The Independent Director of the Company Mr. Girish Advani (DIN: 05264838) has stepped 

down from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 26
th
August, 2019 due to personal commitments. 

On expiry of the first term of five years of appointment as the Independent Director of the 

Company on 25
th
 September, 2019, Mr. J. C. Bham (DIN: 02806038) and Mr. S. Raja (DIN: 

03149272) have expressed their desire of not seeking re-appointment as the Independent 

Directors for the second term and have shown their willingness to be on the Board of the 

Company as the Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board places on record its 

appreciation towards the valuable contribution made by them during their tenure as the 

Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

During the year under review, the existing Independent Director of the Company, Mr. Dhun 

Sorabji Gagrat (DIN: 00017082), who was appointed as such by the members of the Company 

at the 32
nd

 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 

years which expires on 25
th
 September, 2019, is being re-appointed as the Independent Director 

of the Company in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder, for a second term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of 

the ensuing AGM till the AGM to be held in the year 2024, not liable to retire by rotation. 

 

The Board has appointed Mr. Sanjive Arora (DIN: 07852459) as the Additional Director of the 

Company with effect from 29
th
 August, 2019, to hold office up to the date of ensuing AGM of 

the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and is eligible for 

appointment. 

 

In line with the applicable provisions of Sections 149, 160 and all other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder read with SEBI Listing 

Regulations, as amended from time to time, Mr. Sanjive Arora is being appointed as the 

Independent Director of the Company for the term of five (5) consecutive years commencing 

from the conclusion of the ensuing AGM till the AGM to be held in the year 2024, not liable to 

retire by rotation. 
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The Company has received declarations from all the Directors of the Company confirming that 

they are not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 from being 

appointed as the Directors of the Company and have also affirmed compliance with the Wadia 

Code of Ethics and Business Principles as required under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

DIRECTOR RETIRING BY ROTATION 
 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Bakhtavar Ady 

Pardiwalla (DIN: 06721889), a Non – Executive Director on the Board of the Company, retires 

by rotation and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment. Necessary information for 

the re-appointment of Mrs. Bakhtavar Ady Pardiwalla has been provided in the notice 

convening the ensuing AGM. During the year, the Non-Executive Director of the Company had 

no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.  

 

Your Directors have recommended her reappointment as the Non-Executive Director on the 

Board of the Company.   

 

APPOINTMENT OF MANAGER 

 

The Company has, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51), 2(53), 196, 197, 203 and 

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with other applicable provisions of 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including 

any statutory modifications thereof, appointed Mr. Mukesh Meshram, Chartered Accountant 

(Membership No: 170615), as the Manager of the Company for a period of five(5) years with 

effect from April 10, 2019 on such  terms and conditions and  on such  remuneration as  may be 

decided by the Board of the Company. 
 

Further, necessary resolutions for the appointment / re-appointment of the aforesaid Directors 

and the Manager have been included in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM and requisite 

details have been provided in the explanatory statement of the Notice.  
 

The Board recommends their appointments / re-appointment.  
 

Also, during the year under review, Mr. Chandukumar Parmar ceased to be the Company 

Secretary and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company w.e.f. October 12, 2018. 

Subsequently, the Company has appointed Ms. Amisha Rajput, a qualified Company Secretary, 

as the Company Secretary and CFO of the Company w.e.f. 26th March, 2019 at the Board 

Meeting held on that date. 
 

11. MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

During the year under review, total Five (5) Board Meetings were held on May 25, 2018, 

August 10, 2018, November 2, 2018, February 7, 2019 and March 26, 2019 respectively. The 

Company has adhered to the timeline of gap required to be maintained between each of the 

Board meetings as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
12. BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Companies Act, 2013, stipulates evaluation of the performance of the Board, its 

Committees, Individual Directors and the Chairman respectively. 
 

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the Board, the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee (NRC) has formulated the methodology and criteria to evaluate the 

performance of the Board and the individual Directors of the Company.  
 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of various key 

areas such as attendance at the Board and the Committee Meetings, quality of contribution, 

strategic insights or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and its performance, ability 

to challenge views in a constructive manner, knowledge acquired with regard to the Company’s 

business/activities, understanding of industry and global trends, etc. 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of Listing 

Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 

performance, the Directors individually as well as of the Committees of the Board. 

 

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board 

excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the 

Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. Qualitative 

comments and suggestions of Directors were taken into consideration by the Chairman of the 

Board and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Directors have 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

The Board reviewed the performance of each of the Directors of the Company and expressed its 

satisfaction on the same. 

 

13. Nomination and Remuneration Policy/ Charter 
 

The Board has adopted, on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their 

remuneration. The Nomination & Remuneration Charter has been posted on the website of the 

Company at www.technojet.in 

 
14.       Independent Directors Meeting 

 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 26, 2019, inter alia, to 

discuss: 
 

 Evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole; 

 Evaluation of performance of the Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors and Chairman of 

the Board; 

 To assess the quality, quantity and timelines of the flow of information between the Company 

and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

 
All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting. 

 
15. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Your Company has constituted the Audit Committee in terms of the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder comprising of three Independent Directors 

namely, Mr. S. Raja, Mr. J. C. Bham and Mr. Girish Advani respectively.  

 

During the year under review, the Committee met five times viz. May 25, 2018, August 10, 

2019, November 02, 2018, February 07, 2019 and March 26, 2019 respectively.    

 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism through the committee, wherein the genuine 

concerns are expressed by the employees and other Directors. The Company has also provided 

adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors who express their 

concerns. The Company has provided the details of the vigil mechanism in the Whistle Blower 

Policy and also posted on the website of the Company.  

 

The Audit Committee has been reconstituted due to discontinuance of one of the Director from 

the Company viz. Mr. Girish Advani. The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjive Arora (DIN: 

07852459) as the additional Director in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director on 

the Board of the Company who shall also be a member of the Audit Committee of the Board. 

Accordingly, the revised composition of the committee includes Mr. S. Raja, Mr. D. S. Gagrat 

and Mr. Sanjive Arora respectively.  
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16. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

Your Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) in terms of 

the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder comprising of 

three Independent Directors namely, Mr. Girish Advani (Chairman) , Mr. J. C. Bham and Mr. 

S. Raja respectively. The Company has duly complied with the provisions of Section 178(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. majority of its members are independent. During the year under 

review, the Committee met on 26
th
 March, 2019. 

 

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes:  
 

 Setup and composition of the Board, its committees.  

 Evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees and Individual Directors.  

 Remuneration for Directors, KMP and other employees.  

 

The NRC has been reconstituted due to discontinuance of one of the Director from the 

Company viz. Mr. Girish Advani. The Company has appointed Mr. Sanjive Arora (DIN: 

07852459) as the additional Director in the category of Non-Executive Independent Director on 

the Board of the Company who shall also be a member of the Committee. Accordingly, the 

revised composition of the committee includes Mr. Sanjive Arora, Mr. J. C. Bham and Mr. D. 

S. Gagrat respectively. 
 

17. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of 

their knowledge, confirms that: 
 

1) in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been  

followed and there are no material departures; 

 

2) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company 

for that period; 
 

3) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

4) they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and  

 

5) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

6) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 

 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 

maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors 

and the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the 

Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls 

were adequate and effective during the financial year 2018-19. 

 
18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The Information as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part 

of this Report as “Annexure A”.  

 

 

 



 

 
19. AUDITORS: 

Statutory Auditors 
 

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Company 

at its Annual General Meeting held on 30
th 

September, 2015, appointed M/s. Kalyaniwalla & 

Mistry, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (ICAI Registration No. 104607W) as the statutory 

Auditor of the Company for a period of five years commencing from the 33
rd

 Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of the 38
th
 AGM on such remuneration as may be fixed by 

the Board, apart from reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them for 

the purpose of audit. 

 

Pursuant to amendments in Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirements to place 

the matter relating to such appointment for ratification by members at every Annual General 

Meeting has been done away with. 

  

The Report given by the auditors on the Financial Statement of the Company for F.Y 2018 – 19 

forms part of the Annual Report.  
 

Secretarial Auditor 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has 

appointed M/s. Parikh & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the 

Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed herewith as 

“Annexure B”. 

 

Internal Auditors 
 

The Internal Auditor of the Company - M/s. K. S. Thar & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Regn No. 110959W), have conducted the internal audit of the Company for the F.Y 2018-19. 

The reports and findings of the Internal Auditor are periodically reviewed by the Audit 

Committee. 

 
20. SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 

COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts and 

tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. 

 
21. MATERIAL CHANGES: 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which this financial 

statement relates up to the date of this report. 

 
22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

Internal Audit plays a key role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors with respect to 

the Company having adequate Internal Financial Control Systems. The Company has adequate 

Internal Control System and processes in place with respect to its financial statements which 

provides reasonable assurance and reliability of financial reporting and preparation of Financial 

Statements.  
 

The reports and findings of the internal auditor and the internal control system are reviewed 

periodically by the Audit Committee. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal 

Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board.  

 
23. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Ind AS): 

Your Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) for the accounting period 

beginning from 01
st
 April, 2018 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 

16
th
 February, 2015 notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. 

 

 



 

 
24. AUDITORS QUALIFICATIONS: 

The Statutory Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remarks.  
 

However, the Secretarial Auditors had made certain qualification in their report regarding non – 

appointment of a Key Managerial Personnel as required under Section 203(1)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. In lieu of this qualification, the Company has appointed a Key 

Managerial Personnel subsequently. 

 

25. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

 

The Company has formulated a Risk Assessment & Management Policy, duly reviewed by the 

Audit Committee, establishing the philosophy of the Company towards risk identification, 

analysis and prioritization of risks, development of risk mitigation plans and reporting to the 

Board periodically. The Policy is applicable to all the functions and departments of the 

Company. The said Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.technojet.in 

 
26. DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy 

on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 

provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of 

sexual harassment at workplace.  
 

The Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment during the financial year 

2018-19 

 
27. CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business Principles for Non-

Executive Directors as also for the employees including Whole-Time Directors and other 

members of Senior Management. All members of the Board and senior management personnel 

have affirmed compliance with the Code. The said Code has been communicated to all the 

Directors and members of the Senior Management. The Code has also been posted on the 

Company’s website on www.technojet.in 
 

 

28. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE: 
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by 

Designated Persons and code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures of unpublished 

price sensitive information (“Code”) in terms of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 and any statutory amendment (s)/ modification(s) thereof. In compliance 

with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, (“Amendment 

Regulations”), Company has amended the Code.  

 

The Code is applicable to Directors, Employees, Designated Persons and other Connected 

Persons of the Company. 

 
29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY:  

 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company 

and hence the Company is not required to incur any Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 

during the year under review.  
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30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 

The provisions of Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with respect to the Corporate 

Governance Report is not applicable to the Company. 

 

 

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 
 

The provisions of Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with regards to the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report is not applicable to the Company. 
 

32. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETINGS. 
 

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India on Board meetings and Annual General Meetings. 

 

 

33. APPRECIATION: 
 

The Directors express their appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their diligence 

and contribution of their performance. The Directors also record their appreciation for the 

support and co-operation received from franchisees, dealers, agents, suppliers, bankers and all 

other stakeholders. Last but not the least, the Directors wish to thank all shareholders for their 

continued support.   

 

 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

FOR TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

                                                                                                            SD/-                                                                                                     

 J. C. Bham          
      CHAIRMAN    

                                                                                           DIN: 02806038 

Place:  Mumbai  

Dated: 29
th
 August, 2019 

 

Registered Office: 

Neville House, J. N. Heredia Marg,  

Ballard Estate, Mumbai – 400001 

 

  



 

ANNEXURE A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT: 

 

DETAILS OF THE REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMP’S AND EMPLOYEES 

[Pursuant To Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) Of The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

a. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company   

Secretary during the financial year 2018-19, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 

median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 and the 

comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of 

the Company are as under: 
 

     (Amount in lakhs) 
Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director/ KMP and Designation Remuneration of 

Director/KMP 

for Financial Year 

2018-19 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

% increase in 

Remuneration in 

the Financial Year 

2018-19 

Ratio of 

remuneration of 

each Director/to 

median 

remuneration of 

employees 

1 Mr. J. C. Bham,                                                           

Non-Executive Independent Director 
xxx xxx 0 

2 Mr. D. S. Gagrat,                                                           

Non-Executive Independent Director 
xxx xxx 0 

3 Mr. S. Raja,                                                                     

Non-Executive Independent Director 
xxx xxx 0 

4 Mr. Girish Advani,                                                  

Non-Executive Independent Director 
xxx xxx 0 

5 Mrs. Bakhtavar A. Pardiwalla,                                        

Non-Executive Director 
xxx xxx 0 

6 Mr. Chandukumar Parmar, Chief Financial 

Officer and Company Secretary upto 

12.10.2018 1.84 # # 

7 Ms. Amisha Rajput, Chief Financial Officer 

and Company Secretary w.e.f. 18.03.2019 
0.19 * * 

 

*Since there is no common denomination for the period of 2 years, comparison of remuneration of 

Directors to Employees and comparison of remuneration of KMP against the performance of the 

company cannot be provided. 
 

#Details not stated as Mr. Chandukumar Parmar resigned as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 

the close of working hours of 12
th
 October, 2018. 

 

b. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 1.84 

lakhs. However keeping 2018-19 as a base year comparison for increase in the median 

remuneration of employees cannot be provided for the current year.x 
 

c. There was 1 permanent employee on the rolls of the Company as on March 2019. 

 

d. It is hereby confirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the Remuneration policy of the 

Company. 
 

 

      FOR TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

      

    SD/- 

      J. C. Bham 

    Chairman  

       DIN: 02806038 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 29th August, 2019 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31STMARCI-l2019 

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and R~le o. 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 

To, 
The Mem_bers, 
Oseaspre Consultants Limited 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Oseaspre Consultants 
Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secre tarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Concpnny's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company, the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, the cxplanCitions Cl nd clmifications given to us and 
the representations made by the Mcmagement, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2019 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner ond su bjcct to the reporting mCidc hereinoftcr: 

We have exm11ined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and 
other records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Ac t, 2013 (the Act) an d the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Ac t, 1996 and the Regul ations and Bye-laws frmned 
thereunder; 
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(iv) The following Regulations <md Guidel ines prescribed under the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India Act 1992 ('SEDI Act') 

(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regu! Ci tions, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c)The Securities and Exchm1ge Bocn-d of India (Tssue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capi tal Clnd Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 and am.endm.ents from tim.e to time;( ot applicable to the Company 
during the audit period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Sha re Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;(Not Ci pplicable to the Contpany during the audit 
period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations,2008;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
periocl)and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of fndia (Buyback of Securi ties) 
Regula tions, 1998; The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018 ( o t applicable to the Company during the audit 
period ) 

(v) As represented by the Management there arc no sec tor specific laws applicable 
to the Company. 

We have also cxantined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Com.pany Secretaries of India with 
respect to board and general meetings which a re general ly complied with. 

(ii) The Listing Agreem ents entered into by the Com pany \1\lith BSE Limited read 
with the SEBI (Listing Obligations at1d Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
which are generally complied with . 
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During the period under review, the Company has complied w ith the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above except that 
the company is ye t to appoint Key Man0creria l Personnel ClS required under Section 
203(1)(i) of the Act. The following me the detCiils of the orders & notices passed by 
the SEBI and received by the Cmnpany. 

1. The com.pany has received a Show cause Notice under Rule 4(1) of SEBI 
(Procedure for holding Inquiry Clnd Imposing Penalties by Adjudicating 
Officer) Rules, 1995) dated August 07, 2018 . 

2. The com.pany has received a Hearing No tice under Rule 4(3) of the SEBI 
(procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties by Adjucating 
Officer) Rules, 1995) dated August 23, 2018. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors subject to compli<-mce of section 203(1)(i) of the Act. No 
changes in the composition of the Bomd of Directors took place during the period 
under review. 

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further informa tion and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningfu l p<lr ticipation at the m_eeting. 

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate w ith the size and operc1tions of the Compm1)' to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicc1ble lavvs, rules, rc0uL1tions Clnd guidelines. Howe 'Ci, it is 
required to be strengthened . 

We further repor t that during the audit period no events occurred which had 
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursu<mce of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines etc . · 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 27, 2019 

For Parikh & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Sig~~ 
j J~~ojari 
Partner 

FCS o: 8102 CP o: 8187 
This Report is to be renri wd/1 ou r letler of 1'7JCI! ./111£! wllicl! is nune.rcri ns Annexure A nnd 
Forms nn iutegml pnrt of L-11is report. 
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'Annexure A' 

To, 
The Members 
Oseaspre Consultants Limi ted 

Our report of even date is to be read along w ith this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secre tarial record is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our mr d it. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. The verification IVCIS done on test basis to ensure that 
correct fCicts are reflected in SecretJ.ri<~l records. We believe that the process 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 
and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required , we have obtained the ~anc1gement representation 
about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events 
etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisiOns of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, slJndards is the responsibili ty of managen1ent . Our 
examina tion was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis . 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Com.pany nor of the efficacy or effec tiveness w ith w hich the 
management has conduc ted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 27, 2019 

For Parikh & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

FCS No: 8102 CP No: 8187 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF 
TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED (the 
'Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the ' Act') in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule::, 2015, as amended, 
("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements 111 accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's repott thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 'lot express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

LLP IN : AAH · 3437 

OFFICE: ESPLANADE HOUSE, 29, HAZARIMAL SOMANI MARG , FORT, MUMBAI 400 oo1 
TEL.· (91) (22) 6158 6200 , 6158 7200 FAX: (91) (22) 6158 6275 
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statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record~ relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company' s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibi.lities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and a~sess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in plac;:: and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events cr conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the 'Order') issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure 'A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account. 
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31 , 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure 'B'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe Company' s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid I provided by the Company during the year. So the provisions of section 197 of the Act, does not apply. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we further report that: 

i. The C0mpany has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position. Refer note 21 to the Ind AS financial statements. 
11. The Company did not have any Long Term Contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For KALYANIW ALLA & MISTRY LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

o: 104607W I W100166 

Pa 
Membership No: 124658 
Mumbai, May 27, 2019 
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Referred to in Para I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our Report to the Members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019: 

Statement on Matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 

I. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular program for physical verification of fixed assets by which all the fixed assets are verified once in every three years. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced to us, the title deeds of the immoveable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

2. The Company being a service company does not have any inventory and hence the provision of paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act. Consequently, the provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the Company has not granted any loans to directors I to a company in which the director is interested, to which the provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply. Further the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect to grant of loans, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided have been complied with by the Company, as applicable. 

5. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits, from the public as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India, to which the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other applicable provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under apply. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (I) of the Companies Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the 
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including dues pertaining to 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, profession tax, cess 
and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities . According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed dues which have remained outstanding as at the end ofthe financial year, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax, goods and service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from financial institution, banks, government or dues to any debenture holder during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

9. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed by us, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, no fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company by its officers or employee has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid I provided any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced before us, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where apjJiicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced before us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of the order are not applicable. 

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced before us, the Company has not has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xv) of the order are not applicable. 

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank oflndia Act, 1934 and hence the provision of clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable. 

For KALYANIW ALLA & MISTRY LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

o: 104607W I W100166 

Membership No: !24658 
Mumbai, May 27,2019 
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditor's Report 

The Annexure referred to in Para 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019: 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED (the 'Company') as at March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements issued by the Ir.stitute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, as8essing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control with reference to the financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to tht; maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, including the poss;bility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to the financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, 
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to the financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating 
effectively as at r.1arch 31, 2019, based on the internal control with reference to the financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For KALY ANIW ALLA & MISTRY LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F'rm Registration No: 104607W I W100166 

iShed K. Udw~dia 
Partner 
Membership No: 124658 
Mumbai, May 27,2019 
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TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

(Amount in IN R) 
Particulars 

Note As at As at 31st Ma rch, 2019 31st March, 2018 
ASSETS 
No n-current assets 
(a) Property, Plant and Eq uipment 

3 
2 2 

(b) I nvcstment Property 
4 67,985 68.660 

(c) Financial Assets 
(i) In vestments 

5 723, 196 720.06 1 
Total No n-C urrent assets 

791,183 788,723 C urrent assets 
(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 
6 - 2,000 

(ii ) Cash and cash equ ivalents 
7 735.457 596.9 10 

(ii i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
8 7.939.1 45 7. 752.643 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 
9 154.878 156.:168 

(c) Other current assets 
10 8,509 7.45? 

Total C urrent assets 

8,837,989 8,515,373 TOTAL ASSETS 
9,629,172 9,304,096 EQUITY AND LIABIUTlES 

Equ ity 
(a) Equ ity Share cap ital 

II 2,000.000 2.000.000 
(b) Other Equity 

12 7,413.764 7.084. 780 
Tota l Equ ity 

9,413,764 9,084,780 Liabilities 
Non-cm..-ent liabilities 
(a) Deferred tax li ab ilities (Net) 

13 146.916 146.264 
Total No n-current liabilities 

146,916 146,264 Current liabilities 
(a) Other current liabilities 

14 68.492 73 ,052 
Total-Current liabilities 

68,492 73,0S2 TOTAL EQU ITY AN D LIABILITIES 
9,629,172 9,304,096 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financ ial statements - I to 32 

As per our report attached 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 

Mu mbai. May 27.20 19 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Technojet Consultants Limited 
CIN : L742 1 OM H 1982PLC027651 

Mr. J. C. Bham 
Director 

Dl~ 
Mrs. Amisha Raj put 

Di recto r 
DIN : 03 I 49272 

Company Secretary I Chief Fin anc ial Oflicc1· Mumbai. May 27. 20 19 

' 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 st Marc h, 2019 

(Amount in INR) Particulars 
Note No Year Ended Year End ed 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 INCOME 
I Other Income 

15 1,229,754 II Total Income 
1,229,754 

Ill EXPENSES 
Empl oyee benefits expense 

16 202.856 Deprec iation and amorti sation expenses 17 675 Other expenses 
18 621 ,722 Total Ex penses (Ill) 

825,253 

IV Profit I (Loss) before exceptional items a nd tax (II- Ill) 404,501 

v Exceptiona l items 
-

VI Profit I (Loss) Before Tax (lV- V) 
404,501 

VI I Tax expense : 
Current tax 

20 78,000 Total Tax Expe nditure (VII) 
78,000 

VIII Profit I (Loss) for the year (VI- Vll) 
326,501 

IX Other comprehensive income 
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Change in fair value of equity investments 
3,135 (ii) Income tax re lating to items that will not be 
(652) reclass ified to profit and loss. 

2,483 
X Total co mprehensive income for the yea r (VI II + IX) 

328,984 

XI Earnings per eq uity share of nominal value of lNR 101- each 19 (i) Basic (in INR) 
1.63 (ii ) Diluted (i n INR) 
1.63 

The accompanying notes are an integral part o f the financial statements- I to 32 

As per our report attached 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 

Mumbai. May 27.2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Technojet Co nsultants Li mited 
CIN : L74210MH I982PLC027651 

Mr. J. C. Bham 
Director 

OJ~ 

Mrs. Amis ha Rajput 

DIN: 03149272 

Company Secretary I Ch ief Financial Ollicer 
Mu mbai. May 27. 20 19 

849.860 
849,860 

495.069 
678 

632.693 
1,128,440 

(278,580) 

-

(278,580) 

-

-

(278,580) 

( 11 3.743) 
23,43 1 

(90,312) 

(368,892) 

( 1.39) 
( I 39) 



TECHNOJET CONS LTANTS LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flow forth:.~ year ended 31st March, 2019 

(Amount in INR) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit I (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 404,50 I (278,580) 

Adjustmelltsfor: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 675 678 

Profit on sale of mutual funds (46 1 ,463) (360,092) 

Unclaimed balances I excess provisions written back (2,040) (i\_435) 

Interest income ( 105 ,977) ( 181 ,333 ) 

(164,304) (827,762) 

Ad_justmcnts for changes in worl<ing capital 
Other current assets (L057) ( I ,418) 

Other current liabilities (2,520) 35 ,552 
(167,881) (793,628) 

Direct taxes paid (Net) (76,5 1 0) 72.777 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATI NG ACTIVITIES (A) (244,391) (720,851) 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTI NG ACTIVITIES 

Term Deposit placed with bank (7,900,000) (7 0 700,000) 

Term Deposit wi th bank-matured 7,700,000 4.000,000 

Purchase of investments (7,800,000) ( 4,000,000) 

Proceeds from redemption of preference shares 2,000 -
Proceeds Ji·om sale of mutual funds 8,26 1,463 8,432,626 

Interest received 11 9,475 294,427 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 382,938 1,027,053 

c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) - -

NET INCREASE I (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( A+B+C) 138,547 306,202 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE YEAR 596,910 290,708 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 735,457 596,910 

Notes · 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31st Ma rch, 2019 31st March, 2018 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: 
Balances with banks in current accounts 731.740 594.552 
Cheques on hand 275 -
Cash on hand 3,442 2,358 

735,457 596,910 

2 The above Statement of cash !low has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in lnd AS 7. 'Statement of Cash Flows' 

3 Figures in brackets are outflows I deductions. Previous years figures have been regrouped wherever necessary_ 

As per our report attached 
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
Chartered Account ants 

M.No. 124658 

Mumbai_ May 27, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Tcchnojct Consultants Limited 
C IN: L742 I OM I-I I 982PLC02765 I 

Mr. J. C. Bham 
Director 

DfN~' 
Mrs. Amisha Raj put 

DIN • 03 149272 

Company Secretary I Chief Financial Officer 
Mumbai , May 27, 2019 



TECH NOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 

Note No. 

As at March 31,2017 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 

II 

As at March 31,2018 
Changes in equi ty share capital during the year 

II 

As at March 31,2019 

II (B) OTHER EQUITY (Refer Note No. 12) 

Items of Other Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive Pat·ticulars 

General Reserve 

Balance as at March 31,2017 
1,008,990 

Profit for the year 

-Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -Total compt·ehensive income for the year -
Balance as at March 31,2018 

1,008,990 
Profit for the year 

-Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -Total comprehensive income for the year -
Balance as at March 31,2019 

1,008,990 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements - I to 32 
As per our report attached 
For KALY AN IWALLA & MISTRY LLP 

M.No. 124658 

Mumbai. May 27.20 19 

income 

Equity lnstt·uments 
Retained Earnings 

through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income 

5,790,618 654,064 

(278,580) -
- (90.3 12) 

(278,580) (90,312) 

5,512,038 563,752 

326,501 -
- 2,483 

326,501 2,483 

5,838,539 566,235 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors Technojet Consultants Limited 
C lN: L742 10MH 1982PLC0276S I 

Mr. J. C. Bham 
Director Dlw 
Mrs. Amisha Rajput 

(Amount in IN R) 
Balance 

2,000,000 
-

2,000,000 
-

2,000,000 

(A mount in !NR) 

Total 

7,453,672 

(278,580) 
(90,312) 

(368,892) 

7,084,780 

326,501 
2,.t83 

328,98-t 

7,413,76-t 

Company Secretary I Ch ief Financial Officer Mumbai. May 27 . 20 19 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY 

Technojet Consultants Limited (the Company) was incorporated on June 28, 1982. It is 

engaged in the business of provision of technical know-how or rendering of services in 

connection with the provision of technical know-how. The Company is a public company 

limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India and is listed on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange (BSE). The Company's registered office is at Neville House, J.N. Heredia Marg, 

Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Statement of compliance 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards ('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the years presented in the financial 

statements. 

(b) Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain 

financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as 

explained in the accounting policies below. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of 

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique . In 

estimating the f;:tir value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 

characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants would take those characteristics 

into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are 14apitalized into 

Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value 

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date ; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 



TECHNO.JET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as Current and Non-Current as per the 
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services rendered and the time between the 

rendering of the services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current and Non-Current 

classification of assets and liabilities. 

All the Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") issued and notified by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs are effective and considered for the significant accounting policies to the 

extent relevant and applicable for the Company. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. 

(c) Use of estimates and judgments 

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under Note 2 above, the Company 

is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future period, if the revision 
affects current and future period. 

(d) Recent Accounting Developments 

Standards issued but not yet effective 
Ind AS 116 Leases: 

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on 30111 March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, 
including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement. 
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a 

single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. 

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ' low-value ' assets 
(e.g. , personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e. , leases with a lease term of 12 months 



TECHNOJET CONSULT ANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

expense on the right-of-use asset. As the Company is not a lessee as on 31 51 March, 2019, 
therefore this standard has no impact in its Financial Statements. 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost includes purchase price, taxes and duties and other direct costs incurred for bringing 
the asset to the condition of its intended use . Subsequent costs are included in the asset ' s 
carrying amount or 16apitalize as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs attributable to the 
acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is also 16apitalized as part of the cost of the 
asset. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided on the straight-line method, pro­
rata to the period of use, over their useful life. The estimated useful lives and residual values 
are as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a 
prospective basis. 

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: 

Asset Useful Life 
Electrical Installation 10 years 
Furniture and Fixture 10 years 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

The Company had elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the previous 
GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01 , 
2016. 



TECHNOJET CONSULT ANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

(f) Investment Property 

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. 
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost includes purchase price, taxes and duties and other direct costs incurred for bringing 
the asset to the condition of its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset ' s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized 
in statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of a qualifying asset is also capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 

Depreciation on investment property is provided on the straight-line method, pro-rata to the 
period of use, over the useful life as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 20 13 

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the prope1iy (calculated as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the property is derecognized. 

The Company had elected to measure all its investment property at the previous GAAP 
carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 1, 2016. 

(g) Impairment of tangible assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also 
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest 
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be 
identified. 



TECHNOJET CONSULT ANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is 

estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash­

generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized 

immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash­

generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the 

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash- generating unit) 

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in statement of 

profit and loss. 

(h) Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with banks and other 

short term highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into cash and which are 

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and have original maturities of three 

months or less. 

(i) Financials Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 

liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 

loss (' FVTPL")} are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets: 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. All recognized financial 

assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value 

through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the 

period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets . 



TECHNOJET CONSULT ANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

Investment in Equity Instruments: 

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured 
at fair value. The Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the 
same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. 

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value change 
on an equity instrument is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the 
Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding 
dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCI. Amounts 
recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Investment in Preference Shares: 

All Investments in preference shares are measured at the amortised cost, if both the 
following conditions are met: 
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Investment in mutual funds: 

All investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows 
from the asset. 

Impairment of Financial Asset 

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition 
other than financials assets in FVTPL category. 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to 

the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company 

expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks 

of default occurring as the weights . When estimating the cash flows , the Company is 

required to consider: 

All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over 

the expected life of the assets. 

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral 

to the contractual terms. 

For financial assets the Company recogmzes 12 month expected credit losses for all 

originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial 

asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses 

are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases 

significantly since its initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a 

financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is 

determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial 

liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and 

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are 

recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Repurchase of the Company' s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly 

in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, 

issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost 

unless at initial recognition , they are classified as fair value tlu·ough profit or loss. 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for· the year ended 31st March, 2019 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured 

at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interest expense are included in the 'Finance costs' line item. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial 

liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and 

points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction 

costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or 

(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company ' s 

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. 

(j) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 

as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the 

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to 

settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 

and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash 

flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of 

those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When 

discounting is used, the increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 

finance cost. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 

recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured 

reliably. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past 

events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a 

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 

cannot be made. 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 5
' March, 2019 

(k) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 

is reduced for estimated rebates and similar allowances. 

Dividend and interest income 

Dividend income from investments 1s recognized when the Company's right to rece1ve 

payment has been established. 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR), 

which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 

life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

(I) Cost recognition 

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred and are classified according to their 

nature. 

(m) Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in 

the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related service is rendered. 

Post-employment and other long term benefits 

The provisions of the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

and Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable to the Company. 

(n) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquJsJtJOn, construction or production of 

qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are 

recognized in statement of prof'it and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 

the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent 

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3151 March, 2019 

(o) Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially 

all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 

operating leases. 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a 

lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 

the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 

specified in an arrangement. 

The Company as Lessor 

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with 

expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost 

increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial 

direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 

carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. 

The Company as Lessee 

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with 

expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor ' s expected inflationary cost 

increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. 

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period 

in which they are incurred. 

(p) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 

attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus issue, 

bonus element in a rights issue and shares split that have changed the number of equity 

shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the 

period attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 

outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 

shares. 



TECHNOJET CONSULTANTS LIMITED 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

( q) Taxation 

Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 

profit before tax as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or 

expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or 

deductible. The Company' s cunent tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 

computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the 

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against those deductible 

temporary differences which can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 

recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and 

liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In 

addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from 

the initial recognition of goodwiil. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised , based on tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that 

would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting 

period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabi I ities. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they 

relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(Amount in INR) 

Description of Assets Electrical Furniture Total 

Installation & Fixture 

I. Gross Blocli 
Balance at April I, 2017 I I 2 

Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance at March 31,2018 I I 2 

Additions - - -

Disposals - - -
Balance at Mat·ch 31,2019 l I 2 

II. Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at April!, 2017 - - -

Depreciation expense for the year - - -
Balance at March 31, 2018 - - -
Depreciation expense for the year - - -
Balance at March 31, 2019 - - -

IJ I. Net block (1-11) 

Balance at March 31, 2019 I I 2 

Balance at Mat·ch 31,2018 I I 2 

BalanceatAp.-ill ,2017 I I 2 

4 Investment Property 
(Amou nt in INR) 

Description of Assets Leasehold Factory 

Land Building Total 

I. Gt·oss Block 

Balance at April!, 2017 66,785 26,925 93,710 

Add itions - - -

Disposals - - -

Balance at 31 March, 2018 66,785 26,925 93,710 

Add itions - - -

Disposals - - -

Balance at March 31,2019 66,785 26,925 93,710 

II. Accumulated depreciation 

BalanceatAprill ,2017 22,084 2,288 24,372 

Depreciation expense for the year 678 - 678 

Balance at March 31 , 2018 22,762 2,288 25,050 

Depreciat ion expense for the year 675 - 675 

Balance at March 31, 2019 23,437 2,288 25,725 

Ill. Net block (1-11) 

Balance at March 31, 2019 -13,348 24,637 67,985 

Balance at March 31,2018 44,023 24,637 68,660 

Balance at A__pdl I, 2017 44,701 24,637 69,338 

a) The Company has given land and building on operating lease admeasuri ng approximately 2500 sq. feet situated at C-1 B 

/ 519 G. I. D. C. , Gundlav. Valsad. 

b) The Company is unable to determ ine fa ir value of the said property reliably since comparable market transactions are 

infrequent and alternative reliable measurements of fair value are not available. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yea r ended 31st March, 2019 

5 INVESTME NTS- NON CURRENT 
(Amoun t in INR) 

Paid up As at As at 
Particulars 

Value I Face 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

No. of Shares (INR) No. of Shares ( INR) 

Investment in Equ ity Instruments 
At fair value thro ugh Other Comprehensive Income 
Unquoted , full y paid- up 
Eq uity Shares 

I NOR Medical Products Li mited IN R 10 each 48,000 723 , 196 48 ,000 720,06 1 

TOTAL 723,196 720,061 

Aggr·cgatc can·ying value of unquotcd investments 723,196 720,061 
Aggregate amount of impainnent in the value of investment - -

6 INVESTMENTS - CU RRENT 

(A mount in INR1 
Paid up value As at As a t 

Particulars 
I Face Value 31st March, 2019 31st Marc h, 2018 

At amortised cost 
Unquoted full y paid-up 
Preference Shares 

I I %Non Cumulati ve Redeemable Preference shares 
in owrosjee Wad ia and Sons Ltd. (Refer Note be low) INR 100 each 18 1.800 

12 % Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares 
in Nidhivan Investments and Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd .(Redeemed on 26-June-20 18) INR 100 each - 2 200 

TOTAL - 2,000 

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments - 2,000 

Note Pu rsuant to the scheme of Arrangemen t of N.W.Export Limited (Trans feror Company I) and Sunflower In vestments and Textiles Limited (Transferor 

Company 2) with Nowrosjee Wadia and Sons Lim ited (NWS!Transferee Company), approved by NCLT vide its order dated 22nd Ju ne. 2017, the shares held in the 
name of Sun fl ower In vestmen ts and Texti les Limited were transferred to acquirer (NWSr r ransferee Company) post-merger. These shares have been subsequently 
redeemed on June I I, 2018. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yea r ended 31st March, 2019 

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
(Amount in JNR) 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Balances with banks in current accounts 731 ,740 594,552 

C heques in hand 
275 -

Cash on hand 
3,442 2.358 

TOTAL 
735,457 596,910 

8 OTHER BANK BALANCES 
(Amount in !NR) 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Deposit under Escrow Accounts (Refer Note below) 27 ,945 28 ,080 

Bank Depos it wi th maturity less than twelve months 7,911,200 7.724.563 

TOTAL 7,939,145 7,752,643 

Note: The deposit under the Investment Deposit Scheme, 1986 is a designated account under the scheme to be operated 

only for the purpose of acquisition of assets or repayment of term loans. 

9 CURRENT TAX ASSETS 
(A mount in INR) 

As at As at 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Advance income tax (net of provision for taxation) 154,878 156,368 

TOTAL 154,878 156,368 

10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
(Amount in !NR) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Prepaid expenses 8,509 7,452 

TOTAL 8,509 7,452 
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11 EQ UITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Number of Shat·es Amount in INR 

As at As at As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Authorised 
200,000 Equity Shares of IN R I 0 each 200,000 200,000 2,000,000 2.000.000 

Issued , Subscribed and Paid Up 

200,000 Equity Shares of INR I 0 each ful ly paid up 200,000 200.000 2,000,000 2.000.000 

Total 200,000 200,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the t·eporting period: 

Numbet· of Shares Amount in INR 

Equity Shat·es As at As at As at As at 

31st Marc h, 2019 31st March , 2018 31st March, 2019 31st Mat·ch, 2018 

At the beginning of the year 200,000 200,000 2,000,000 2.000,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 200,000 200,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares havi ng a par value of r R I 0/- per share. Each shareholder is e li gible for one vote per share 

held. In the event of liquidation . the equ ity shareho lders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution or 

all preferenti al amounts, in proportion to their sharehold ing. 

c) The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Number of Shares 
As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Ness Nusli Waclia 13 ,800 

Nowros jee Wacl ia & Sons Ltd. 86.943 

Goodeed Charitable Fou ndation 38,950 

d) Information regarding issue of shares during last five years 

i) No shares were all oted pursuant to contracts without payment being recevied in cash . 
ii) No bonus shares have been issued. 

iii ) No shares have been bought back. 

13,800 
86.943 
38,950 

%Holding 

As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

6.90 6.90 
43.47 43.47 
19.48 19.48 
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12 OTHER EQUITY 
(Amount in fNR) 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

General Reserve 1,008,990 1,008,990 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 5,838,539 5,512,038 

ltems of Other Comprehensive Income: 

-Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 566,235 563 ,752 

TOTAL 7,413,764 7,084,780 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

a) General Reserve 
Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013. There IS no 

movement in General Reserve during the current and previous year. 

b) Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 

This represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserve. 

dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 

c) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

The fair value change of the equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income is recognised in equity instruments through other omprehensive income. On disposal , the 

cumulative fair value changes on the said instruments will be reclassified to free reserves. 

13 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 
(Amount in INR) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31st Mat·ch, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Deferred tax on account of equity shares through other 

comprehensive income (Refer note 20) 146,9 16 146,264 

TOTAL 146,916 146,264 

14 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
(Amount in INR) 

As aT AS al 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Statutory dues 10, 100 12.800 

Other Liabi I ities 58,392 60,252 

TOTAL 68,492 73,052 
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15 OTHER INCOME 
(Amount in INR) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March 2018 

Rent 
660,000 300,000 

Interest income 
- on term deposit I 05,977 172,363 

-on income tax refund - 8,970 

Profit on sale of mutual funds 461 ,463 360,092 

Gain on fair value of mutual fund (net) - -

Unclaimed balances I excess provisions written back 2,040 8,435 

Other Income 274 -

TOTAL 1,229,754 849,860 

16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 
(A mount in INR) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Salaries, wages and bonus 202,856 479,486 

Staff we lfare expenses - 15.583 

TOTAL 202,856 495,069 

17 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES 
(Amount in INR) 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment - -
Depreciation on investment property 675 678 

TOTAL 675 678 

18 OTHER EXPENSES 
(Amount in INR) 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Rates & taxes 15 ,000 2,500 

Professional fees 66,336 I 03.426 

Advertisement expenses 76,644 62, 184 

Listing fees 295 ,000 287,500 

Custodian fees 21 ,420 34,500 

Payment to auditors 

-A udit fees (Inclusive of taxes) 93 ,000 88,500 

Other expenses 54,322 54.082 

TOTAL 621,722 632,693 
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19 E "t arnmgs per eqUJ y s 1are 
Year Ended Year Ended 

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Loss attributab le to equity shareholders (in IN R) 326,50 I (278, 580) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 200,000 200,000 

Earnings per equity share of nominal value INR I 0/- each 

Bas ic (in IN R) 1.63 ( 1.39) 

Diluted (in IN R) 1.63 ( 1.39) 

20 Tax Expense and Deferred Tax 
(A moun1 in IN R) 

A T ax expense f rom con mumo operations 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March , 2019 31st March , 2018 

Current tax 78.000 -

Total 78,000 -

Effective tax rate reconciliation 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Profit before tax 404.50 1 (27S.580) 

Company's domestic tax rate : 19.24% 20 .60% 

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 78,000 N IL 

B Defened tax liabilities (net) 
As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Tax e ffect on change in fa ir va lue of equity in vestments 146.91 6 146.264 

146,916 146,264 

Reconciliation 
As at As at 

31st March , 2019 31st March, 2018 

Opening Balance of Deferred ta x 146.264 169.695 

Recogni sed in/ reclass ified 11·om oth er comprehensive in come 652 (2 3.43 1) 

C losing balance of Defe...-ed tax 146,916 146,264 

21 Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

As at As at 

31st March , 2019 31st March , 2018 

Penalty imposed by SEBI u/s ISHB of SEBI Act. not acknowledged as debt I 00.000 -
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22 Financial Instruments 
A Accounting classification and fair values 

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial li ab iliti es, including thei r levels in the fair va lue hierarchy, are presented below. Financial assets and financial li abi lities such as cash and cash equ ivalents and other bank balances of which the carrying amount is a reasonable approx imation of fa ir value due to their short term nature, are disclosed at carrying value. 

(Amount in IN R) Particulars As at As at Fair Value 
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 Hierarchy Financial assets 

Non-current 
Measured £! fair value through other 
comgrehensive income (FVOCI) 
- Investment in equity shares 723 , 196 720,06 1 Level 3 

Current 
Measu red at Amortised Cost 
- Investment in preference shares - 2,000 - Cash and cash equ ivalents 735 ,457 596,9 10 - Other bank balances 7 ,939,145 7,752,643 

Financial liabilities - -

B Fair Value Hierarchy 

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or I iabi I ities (Level I measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Leve l 3 measurements). 

Levell :quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets o r li abi liti es Leve12: ~nputs other than quoted prices included in Level l that are observable for the asset or liability, directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 
Level3 : inputs for the asset or liab ility that are not based on observable market data (unobservab le 

C Measurement of Fair Values 
Val uation techniques and sign ificant unobservable inputs 
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 items for the year ended 31st March , 2019 and 31st March, 2018 using significant unobservable inputs used. 

e 
Valuation Techni J.!:vestments in equity shares 
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23 Financial risk management 
The Company is only exposed to credit ri sk. Company has limited type of financial instruments and 
therefore is not exposed much to the risks attached to the fin ancial instruments. The Company's Board of 
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and overs ight of the Company' s risk 
management framework. Thi s note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how 
the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements. 

i) Market Risk 
Company does not deal in transactions in currency other than its functional cu rrency therefore it is not 
exposed to foreign currency exchange ri sk. Additionally, Company does not have exposures to interest 
beari ng secu riti es. 

ii) Credit risk management 
Credit risk refers to the ri sk that a counterpart:y will default on its contractual ob li gations resulting in 
financial loss to the Company. The Company's cred it risk arises principally from cash & cash 
equivalents. The credit risk on liquid funds/ balances with banks is limited because the cou nterpa1iies are 
banks or financial institutions with high credit-ratings ass igned by credit-rating agencies. As at balance 
sheet date, the Company does not have significant concentration of cred it risk. 

iii) Liquidity risl{ management 

The Company does not have any borrowings, hence it is not exposed to liquidity risk. 

24 Capital Risk Management 
The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company wi ll be ab le to continue as goi ng concern 
wh ile maximizing the return through the optimizati on of the debt and equ ity balance. 

The Company's capital requirement is mainly to fund its working capital requirements. The princ ipal 
source of fund ing for the Company was internal accounts fund operations. The Company is not subject to 
any externally imposed capital requirements. 

25 Assets given on Lease: 
The Company has given factory building on lease. The total rent receipts recogn ized in the statement of 
profit and loss is INR 660,000 (previous year INR 300,000). The total fut ure min imum lease receipts is 
given below: 

(Amount in INR) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

In less than a year 480,000 300,000 
In I year to 5 years 520,000 625 ,000 
In more than 5 years - -
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26 There were no transactions with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises during the year as per the information provided by the management. 

27 Related Party Disclosures: 

a) List of related parties and relationships: 

i) Key Managerial Personnel 
a) Mrs. Amisha Raj put- Company Secretary I Chief Financial Officer (w.e .f. 18.03.20 19) b) Mr. Chandu Parmar- Company Secretary I Ch ief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 07.06.2017 till 12.10.2018) c) Mr. Hardik J. Shah- Company Secretary I Chief Financial Officer (upto 20.06.20 17) 

b) Details of transaction with related parties (Amount in INR) Nature of Transactions Key Managerial Personnel 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st Ma•·ch, 2019 31st March, 2018 Short Term Em ployee Benefits 202,856 495,069 

Total 
202,856 495,069 

c) There is no outstanding balance payable or receivable from related parties. 

28 The Company has a single segment and hence there are no separate reportable segments under Indian Acco untin g Standard (lnd AS) I 08 'Operating Segments'. 

29 Dividend 
The Board of Directors of the Company have not recommended any dividend fo r the financial year ended March 31 ,2019. 

30 Subsequent Events 
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date. 

31 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on May 27, 2019. 

32 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped I restated wherever necessary. 

As per our report attached 
Fo1· KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP 
Cha•·tered Accountants 

104607WIWI00166 

M.No. 124658 

Mumbai , May 27, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Boa•·d of Dil·ecton 
Techno jet Consultants Limited 
C IN: L742IOMH 1982PLC027651 

Mr. J. C. Bham 
Director 

DIN~ 

Mrs. Amisha Rajput 
Company Secretary I Chief Financial Officer 
Mumbai , May 27, 2019 
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PROXY FORM 

 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies [Management and 

Administration] Rules, 2014] 

 

 

Name and Address of the            : 

Shareholder 

 

Email Id     : 

 

Registered Folio No./DP ID &      : 

Client ID 

 

I/We, being the member(s) of __________________________________ shares of the above named Company, 

hereby appoint: 

 

1. Name: __________________________________ resident of _____________________________ 

Email: ___________________________Signature _______________ or failing him/her, 

 

2. Name: __________________________________ resident of _____________________________ 

Email: ___________________________Signature _______________ or failing him/her, 

  

3. Name: __________________________________ resident of _____________________________ 

Email: ___________________________Signature _______________ 

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held at the Administrative Office of the Company at C-1, Wadia International Centre, P. Budhkar 

Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400025 on Thursday, 26
th

 September, 2019 at 03.00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof in 

respect of such resolutions as are indicated on the reverse of this page: 

  



 

Resolution 

No. 

Resolutions For Against 

Ordinary Business 

1 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements 

of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 

together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon. 
 

  

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Bakhtavar Ady Pardiwalla 

(DIN:06721889), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 

152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers 

herself for re-appointment 
 

  

3 To appoint Mr. J. C. Bham (DIN: 02806038) as the Non-

Independent Director of the Company 
 

  

4 To appoint Mr. S. Raja (DIN: 03149272) as the Non-Independent 

Director of the Company 
 

  

5 To consider appointment of Mr. Sanjive Arora (DIN: 07852459) 

as the Independent Director of the Company 
 

  

6 To consider appointment of Mr. Mukesh Meshram as the 

Manager for the Company. 
 

  

Special Business 

7 To re-appoint Mr. D. S. Gagrat (DIN: 00017082) as an 

Independent Director for the Second Term 

  

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

Signed this __________________ day of ________________ 2019 

 

Member’s Folio/DP ID-Client ID No. ___________________________ 

 

 

____________________                                                                                ____________________ 

 

Signature of the Member                                                                                Signature of Proxy 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

(1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

(2) For the Resolution please refer to the Notice of the 36
th

 Annual General Meeting. 

(3) Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the 

‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the 

manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

(4) Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission. 

Affix Re. 

1/- 

Revenue 

Stamp  
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – Thursday, 26
th

 September, 2019 

 

 

Name and Address of the            : 

Shareholder 

 

Email Id     : 

 

Registered Folio No/DP ID &      : 

Client ID 

 

No. of Shares held                : 

 

Name of the Proxy                        : 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

(To be filled-in if the Proxy Form has been duly deposited with the Company) 

 

I certify that I am a registered Member/Proxy for the registered Member of the Company. I hereby record 

my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Administrative Office of 

the Company at C-1, Wadia International Centre, P. Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400025 on 

Thursday, 26
th
 September, 2019 at 3.00 p.m. 

 

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of Member/Proxy 

 

 

                                                                                      

______________________                                                                     __________________________ 

Name of the Member/Proxy                                                                          Signature of the Member/Proxy 

 

 

 

NOTE: 

 

1) Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting and hand over 

the same at the entrance duly signed. 

 

2) Shareholder / Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his / her copy of the Notice 

of the Annual General Meeting for reference at the meeting. 

 

3) Kindly refer to the e-voting instructions on the reverse of this page. 
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